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The Samuel Eliot House is located on the north side of Main (College)
Street on a spit which separates Worth and South Coves of the Connecticut
River at 01d Saybrook. At the end of the spit is Saybrook Point, the

site of the original Saybrook Fort which pguarded the entrance to the River.

The house is a typical two and a half story twin chimmey structure with
a more recent two-story gambrel-roofed ell extending to the rear,“the
first floor of which now serves as a garage. ¥Many of the original clap-
boards are still on the exterior. The foundation is of field stone,
strengthened by cement. The front entry has a built-out portico, set
on a brovnstone slab with brownstone steps, probably of later date than
the main part of the house. Two square columns support the portico and
pilasters flank the sidelights of the paneled door. Dentil work lines the
front edge of the Foof of the portico and sets off the capitals of the
supporting columsa Window sash is primarily proper twelve over twelve,
replacement of the original. Smaller windows have four over four pane
arrangement. A modern screened porch sits on the east side of the house.

Originally the housc was comprised of two roams on either side of the
center-hallway. Now a stairway runs between them and a small hallway
separates the side rooms. The rear of the original hallway is now part
of an enlarged living room which includes the rear room at the east. Up-
stairs the two front rooms are bedrooms with doors leading to a small
room which must have been part of the through hall on the second floor.
There is a small room behird the east front bedroom and behind the west
bedroom is a large bathroom and closet.

\‘The fireplace in the front room on the east side of the first floor has

a fire frame with the inscription "Issac Potts, 1795" .\ Correspondence
with the Pottstown Historical Societv has revealed no specific information
about this particular frame but indicated that Isaac Potts was the son

of John Potts who bui”t the Pottstown Historical Society's museum house;
the fire frames there are very similar to those in the Samuel Eliot House.
Over uvhe frame is a mantel piece with pilasters. There is fine dentil
work on the cornice. The fireplaces of the front foom on the west and

of the back room on the east have classical Doric columns supporting
architrave, frieze, and cornice, the top member of which serves as mantel.
Upstairs the front rooms have simple fireplaces with plain moulding and
projecting mantels. The kitchen and what was the back of the west room
on the second floor have fireplaces which have been covered.

The main stairway has a turned newel post and five balusters sunporting

a hand rail, leadine to a pilaster which supports_ an arch over the stair-
way. A vilaster on the other side of the oR | S0z trim work leading
to a modillion and cornice mouldine ‘in ﬂxéggif 44 This forms

the cornice on three sides of the hallw tairs. The
interior doors are mostly six=paneled Jg & There are
also moulded baseboards and chair rai On &4 seghn loor the wide
floor boards remain.
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This house was the original one on this 51te and has functioved as a
residence since it was built. It renders a feeling of permanence and
value to its occupants and to the town because it maintains an architec-
tural heritace.

The official nrogram of the Saybrook Tercentenary Celebration in 1935
states that the Samuel Eliot/House was built by Eliot in 1737 when he
planned to marry Mary Blague. The son of Jared Eliot, prominent land-
owner, iron miner, and original trustee of Yale College, Samuel was a
physician. I11 health and an early death vrevented his marrying and
living in the house.

The Saybrook Land Records list Captain Jabez Stowe as the purchaser of
the house in 1753. It remained in the same family until 1890. XNary
Stowe Newelldaughter of Jabez Stowe, next occupied the *“ouse. Her
husband, Dav¥id Newell, was a ship captain engaged in the slave trade.

A letter from the American consulate dated August 28, 1819 describes

the murder oY Captain Newell by African slaves abnovrd his ship in the
Cape Verde Islands. It is possible that it war during the occuvancy

of the lVewells thrat the iron fire frame was added to the fireplace in
the library. Perhaps the late Georgiaq/architectvral embellishments
such as the classical supnort columns for the mantels, the cornice
mouldings, and the front porch, were added when David ‘ewell was pros-
pering with his overseas trade. Corresnondence with the Valley Forge
State Park Commission has revealed the possibility of the fire frame's
manufacture at Martia's Furnace in the New Jersey Pine Rarrens. Cantain
Newell could easily have brought it by ship from New Jersey to Connecticut.

Saybrook T.and Records show other owners of the same family to be: Mary
Newell Bushnell and Robert Montgomery Bushnell. In 1890 the heirs of
Robert lMontgomery Bushnell sold the house to Mrs. Amy Butler. Other
owners have been Yale professor Edward P. liorris and Dorothy L. Wyeth,
sister—-in-law of artist Andrew Wyeth. MMrs. liyeth had substantial repairs
made and much modernization done according to a local carpenter who did
much of the work.

The house retains many features which evidence its early date. As a
- whole it is arshitecturally and historically important.
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